

- United Nations, Department of Economic and Social Affairs, Population Division (2019). World Population Prospects 2019, Online Edition.
- World Bank (2023): World Bank. 2022. World Development Report 2022: Finance for an Equitable Recovery. Washington, DC: World Bank. doi:10.1596/978-1-4648-1730
- World Health Organization (2023): Global Health Expenditure Database, <https://apps.who.int/nha/database> (accessed 6. February 2023).
- World Health Organization (2023): WHO Coronavirus (COVID-19) Dashboard, <https://covid19.who.int/> (accessed 22. March 2023).
- World Health Organization (2022): World health statistics 2022: monitoring health for the SDGs, sustainable development goals. Geneva 2022.

National social security administrations and public pension providers (in alphabetical order of countries):

- National Social Security Administration Argentina (2023): <https://www.argentina.gob.ar/anses>
- Services Australia (2023): <https://www.servicesaustralia.gov.au/>
- Australian Government Department of Social Services (2023): <https://www.dss.gov.au/seniors/benefits-payments>
- Austrian Pension Insurance Institution (2023): <https://www.sozialversicherung.at>
- Kingdom of Bahrain Social Insurance Organization (2023): <https://www.sio.gov.bh>
- Belgium International Social Security (2023): <https://www.socialsecurity.be>
- Belgium Federal Pension Office (2023): <https://www.sfpd.fgov.be/>
- National Social Security Office Brazil (2023): <https://www.gov.br/inss/pt-br>
- National Social Security Office Bulgaria (2023): <https://www.nssi.bg/en/>
- National Social Security Fund of Cambodia (2023): <http://www.nssf.gov.kh>
- Government of Canada (2023): <https://www.canada.ca/en/services/finance/pensions.html>
- Social Welfare Institute Chile (2023): <https://www.ips.gob.cl/inicio>
- Government of Chile, Chile Atiende (2023): <https://www.chileatiende.gob.cl/fichas/102063>
- National Council for Social Security Fund China (2023): <http://www.ssf.gov.cn/portal/index.htm>
- Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of the People's Republic of China (2023): <http://www.mohrss.gov.cn/>
- Colpensiones Colombia (2023): <https://www.colpensiones.gov.co/>
- Croatian Pension Insurance Institute (2023): <https://www.mirovinsko.hr/en>
- Ministry of Labor, Welfare and Social Insurance Cyprus (2023): <https://www.mlsi.gov.cy>
- Czech Social Security Administration (2023): <https://www.cssz.cz/>
- ATP Denmark (2023): <https://www.atp.dk>
- Estonian Funded Pension Registry (2023): <https://www.pensionikeskus.ee/en/>
- Social Insurance Board Estonia (2023): <https://www.sotsiaalkindlustusamet.ee/en>
- Social Insurance Institution of Finland (2023): <https://www.kela.fi/>
- Finnish Centre for Pensions (2023): <https://www.etk.fi/en/> and <https://www.tyoelake.fi/en/>
- Caisse des Dépôts France (2023): <https://retraitesolidarite.caissedesdepots.fr>
- Cleiss France (2023): <https://www.cleiss.fr/>
- Agirc-Arrco France (2023): <https://www.agirc-arrco.fr/>
- German Pension Insurance (2023): <https://www.deutsche-rentenversicherung.de/>
- Social Security Fund Greece (2023): <https://www.efka.gov.gr/>
- Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority Hong Kong (2023): <https://www.mpfa.org.hk/en>
- Administration of National Pension Insurance Hungary (2023): <https://www.allamkincstar.gov.hu/>
- National Pension System Trust (2023): <https://npstrust.org.in>
- Employee's Provident Fund Organization India (2023): https://www.epfindia.gov.in/site_en/For_Employees.php
- Social Security Administration Indonesia (2023): <https://www.bpjsketenagakerjaan.go.id/en>
- Citizens Information Ireland (2023): <https://www.citizensinformation.ie>